WLIFE OF HANNA OLSEN SEELY"

Hanna Olsen Seely was born in Helsingborg, Sweede n on November
27, 1842, a daughter of Hans Olsen and Chasty Okerson.-

As much time had to be spent in order to make clothes for the family,
the younger members had to cord wool almost every nite. Her older brothers
would assist her as she was the youngest in the family of eight children,

Her work in the day time was to herd geese and to carry ia the toore,
a swamp grass which was cut into blocks and used for fire wood, So she
learned to fit into the hive of industry at a very early age..

As the fumily lived on their farms it was necessary to walk three
Sweedish miles to school. School was held just a few weeks during the
winter and the snow would be pilled as high as the buildings on both sldes
of 'the road,

Her lunch consisted of eel and rye bread and as a child she couldn't
eat fish, so she carried the same kind of lunch, day after day, as there
was meagre change in their dally menue,

When she was in her late teens, she and her mother walked five miles
to be baptized into the Mormon Church, It was necessary to cut through
three fest of ice to have their baptism done. They were baptized at nite
and were very careful to have it déne secretely as the pobocrats would
have mobbed them had they beccme aware of it, :

She and her older sister, Eliza, went to Copenhagen, Denmark, to work
in a dish factory in order to obtain money to immigrate to Zion, Her sister
painting the flowers on the fine china and she polishing and glazing the dishes.

When "19" years of age she took passage on boat from Sweeden unaccompanied
by any of her family or friends and in 1862 she crossed the plains with John
Murdock's Company. DUespite the trials and hardships, she hae often told
of the enjoyable times they had singing and dancing while crossing the plains
and how the young men teamsters would manage to give the young girls a ride
now and again. These rideés were welcomed by her for she sprained her ankle
and was very lame for a number of days.

Locating first at Mt, Pleasant in 1862, and where on July 24, 1863
she married Orange Seely, a young man she met and who drove an oxteam that

supplied many of her rides, for he was much attracted to her and lovingly
called her his "Smiling Hana*,

They later went to the Endowment House in Salt Lake City.

She went through the trials and fears of the Black Hawk War,
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HISTOLY OF HAN:! i SuBLY (OLS%i)

llothers ten ;rowm children have entertained their families "ith interesting
events fron the lives of their unusuel jrandmother, This is my memory of Hannah
Seely Olsen,

She was born September 19, 18656, at Mt, Pleasant, Sanpete Jounty, Utah, the
second chill of Hanna Olsen and Orange Segly, ier brotuers and sisters were an
older sister Emma Jane, thenidannah, Oranze II, Sarah, Chasty mwwmmb§mmnwﬁ Alonro,
Mary Bertrude, Wthel Ingra, and' David Randolph., FEthel died at the age of L years.
411 the rest lived to marry and have families,

Hannah's father was a prosperous farmer of the time, and tueir lives were full
of activity in the zrowing community of Mt. Pleasant,

Aunt Hary Jorgensen Seely told me on a rccent visit, that she, Emma and mother
used to take all their - ounger brotiers and sisters, in tlie sumuer time, don to
Pleasant Creek to give them their Saturday batii. Of course, they took towels and
plenty of home wade soap., I wonder what kind of lather they ot in creek water,

Joseph Paze, who by the vay had a wooden leg, was tlic school teacher in iit,
Pleasant. :fother and ‘unt frma were pupils. 3esides the three R's he tauzut them
to "tat", a lovely art they never forjot. :lany a yard vas used to adorn the cloth-
inz of their children in the years to follow., It was really "sometiing" to watch
ny mother tat; her shuttle flew so fast you wondered how she Jdid it, All tae
schooling they ever had was in this sci.ool but they made much of their opportunity,.
They both wrote a fine hand and never stopped trying to learn arnd improve their lot,

tlother prectically lived at the home of her mother's parents, Hans Olsen and
Kjerstie (Chasty; Persson, who needed her help, From then she learned to speak
Swedish fluently wiich was useful to her all her life, She would wZet along very
well with lNorwezians and Janish folk,

She was not a stranger to the ‘ear and excitement incident to the 3lack :Zawk
War, As e small child, she, with her family, often ran for safety. uer father
was a minute-man all through that war,

I've heard her tell of the joyous associations tiiey enioyed as = rfa~ilv with
grandparents on both sides, uncles, aunts, cousins, and friends in ift. Pleasant,
Sonetimes they treated boyfriends to a small helpini of sujer,

Oranze Seely had been Bishop of ilt, Pleasart for some time when rresident
John Taylor called him to take his younz family to help settle Emery County,

To leave everything that was dear to them—-relatives, friends, schools--and
move to a most desclate ond lonely place ires a ;reat sacrifice to all of them, es-
pecially the older children, Their mother must now leave her agzed parents ivho
wishinzy to be near her nhad followed ilannah, their baby =zirl, to America,

But the thouznt of refusing this call from the Authorities of the Ciurch rever
entered their hearts, so they started immediately to prepare for the move, They
dried all the fruits ana v=zetables available, plums, apples, apricots, corn, squash,
and beans to take -"ith them. GCrandfather had run cattle in Emery County so he knew
some of the probleis, e built a one room lo: cabin which would have to serve as a
home for the present, The Indians wouldn't stay in Emery County, Ther told zrand-
fatuer not to brinz his scuaw an. papooses there, because the water ould kill them,

The new home they had just lived in two yesrs was one of the very finest in
itt, Fleasant, They just couldn't bear the thou:ht of leaving this comfortable
dvelling in which they had such price, funt lary, whom I have quoted said, "All
that sumner the 7irl friends dreaded the time of leparture, They hated the Church
leaders for heinz so n€an as to call this family awsy,"
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It did put grandmother to bed which delayed the zoing for two weeks but the
dreaded day finally came in October of 1880, Ihe youns folks followed them for
miles up the dusty road toward Fairview Canyon to say their teariul good bves, Iiother
w's 14 years old, Emma 15, Orange 12, etc., Seven children of the nine were born in
Mt, Pleasant,

They built the road as tuey went, Grandmotiner drove the team and each child
hat could, carried an ax or hatchet, There had never heen a wazon road from the
west side at that time. Cattle men used trails with pack mules to carry supplies.

Having no powder it often became necessary to build fires to heat the rocks so
they could be broken wihen pounded in order to zet the wazon throuzh, In passing, I
will say thiat the road they made at that time up Fairview Canyon wrs later improved
and was used for many years known as the "Seely Road," The marks of it can be seen
to this day,.

The journey through the mountains was trying and hard but they finally arrived
at the one room log cabin near the river, The first 3Sunday the older children built
a duz-out playhouse in its steep bank and constiucted a fireplace, that gave com-

fort and deli:ht to the younier chillren {or many lon: mont:s.

Minter ceme all too soon which adled to their loneliness and discomfort, It
was necessary for Emma ~nd siotaer to sleep in a covered wazon box set on the zround
a’ainst the house near tue phack door, It was very cold, Crandmother was in cone
stant fear of tneir health but as always the "back was fitted ifor the burden,’

iiother and druzhters shed many tears during that lony dreary vinter, There was
no mail till Sprinz, tnen ‘‘other and Aunt Emma vralked to “ilsonville, ‘any wiles,
and came beck vith their aprons full of letters, precious news from friends and
loved ones in Mt, rleasant, They lau:hed and cried as they read and reread until
the letters were worn to slreds,

They soon hecame ahbscorbed in the problems and burdens of frontier life, The
7irls helped father or motier according to the neea, llother beca e an expert horse-
back rider; when necessary she could lasso a critter, and tie it to the fence,

Grandpa Deely was ve articular about tae construction of liis irrigation
i y 2
ditches on the farm, especially the hsad Zdtcn, The bhanks were straizit up and
down, in other words like a box, the ottom as sriie as the sides were deep, The

2 3
young folk found that when & plz 3ot into this ditch it couldn't turn around or et
out, Uother and funt Chasty had great sport riding the pizs to the delizat of all
the rest, Their amusements were homemacde like their clothinz,

As time went on and otaer settlers made homes alony the river, the distcnce be-
tween tRem was soon covered on horseack or lumber wazon.

I quote from my father, '"Georze Blidlecome with his fiddle comprised the zrand
orchestra, He was sver ready and easily pai.i with home zrown products, He traveled
many miles to those scatteved places to meke music for their dances eitner in their
cabins o around the camp fire, e yet lives in the memories of tliose pioneers who
still suirvive him," )

Mother attendced taese happy social f'nctions and no Jdoubt ner cheerful dis-

vodeHosngww.;«mEHHme»mQSSOWﬁOﬁSmooommwos.

L trip over the mountains to .it, Pleasant was made every summer for a visit and
to dvy fruit, etc., until fruit trecs could be ‘jrowr, This furnished memories to
talk about for another year., In order to supprly this isolated zroup of pioneers with
flour, zrandfatier, witih the help of his orother J. '’ Seely, built a ~7rist will one
block south of the coafortabl:s new honeyhich the fanily nov occupied,
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funt Fmma married early and that brousht added work and responsibility to
dannah whose natural abilities wers ueveloped early. She was her motier's main
stay, cooking for the men who built the mill, fimma married Onristian Grice Larsen,
the son of Presilent C. G, Larsen, who had also been cazlled into this same place,
Castle Vclley, as it was called,

Not lonz before Emma's marriage, some Jews, traveling through the country with
goods to sell, stopped at their home and sold Grandpa Seely two packages with yards
and yards of lovely silk, He paid #1150 for the material to ve used for Hmma's
weddin: drcss and later on one for mother, Emma chose the zrey brocade with plain
of the same color to use for trimming,

other put the neather brocade with plain to matcu, carefully away for some fut-
ure .ay,

In "u-~ust, 1883 while mother was horseback riding over the town site of Castle
> 3 i
Dale, Emery lounty, she saw coming tovar. her, on a nule, a stranze younz man, A
strone impression came o ner, Usin: ner om words, "When I saw nim 3zallopin? along
=] N e 2 ] =
I said, 'Taerc is the man with woom I shall spend my life l'" This yocun3z man was
Abinadi Olsen, but to all hi: family and friends he was called Nads In his history
also is recorded his deiinite feelinzys concerning this historic meeting,

Lfoer tir-e and a half years of courtship, the beautiful heath r colored brocade
silk was mede into a weddinz gown in the style of the Jay--biz puffs of silk in the
back of ihe skirt, triared with tie plain color, I have seen it many times, also
Aunt Emaa's srey one, It always thrilled me when mother took it witin its wrappings,
from the biz chest and jave it an z2irin; and then stored it carefully away ajain,
Thatever beccme of it? I Jon't know. Perhaps the brocade fell to pieces. I am
sure srani.a eni srandma Seely were thrilled to have the zirls enjoy these lovely
Qammmmaﬁo;mwvsmxoﬁwmowwﬁmmmowwwwommﬁnm%wmQGQQSOmHHm@ﬁomﬂmcwm.

By this sime thers were meny ‘amilies alony the river and quite a little town of
homnes was started,

On February 21, 1387, Hannah 3eely and /[Dbinadi Olsen were marriedl, and the
weddinz was quite an affeir witi [amilies #nd friends coming from far and near, The
ceremony was perforued in the home by President C, G, Larsen, Two years later they
took six monti old Jhasty to HManti where they weie sealed for time and all eternity
by Daniel 1, ’‘ells,

(n a recent visit to Castle Dale, Father's sister Mal Berg who is now eighty-
seven years old, told me she and funt Sarah helped cook the tig wedding dinner of
roast becf, ciuicken, and daifferent vezetables that had been kept in the cellar for
winter use, She especially remembers the ;reat number of dried apply pies she help-
ed to make, She said everyone in all the surrounding country was invited, Iannah's
father had been the bishop of Emery, Carbon ana Grand Counties and know everyone,
GranJifetier 3cely save =5 a weddir; 7ift twenty head of stecp and 2 beautiful sadile
horse, Grandmotaer had prepared a lovely btrousseau of quilts, pillows, sheets,
pillo: slips, towels, and cosiorting things sor the home,

Before they were married father had the home huilt on what became the finest
location on the main street of lastle Jale, Crandpa Olszn, who was an "Old Country
trained mason" built the walls, the two fireplace chimneys, and did the plastering

nd white washed the walls, The three main rooms were finished with space left above
for upstair rooms, In tiie a kitchen and cellar was added, and the upstairs finished,

Crandfathier Olsen and father irere always pleased when rother came alony with a
nice nid-afternoon lunci: while they were worlking on the new house,

This union was blessed with elzven children zs follows: Chasty lagdelane,
Oran ;e ibinadi, Hemning Benjomin, Hazel, )JeLon Simon, Jenny Lind, Crystal, 'ania,
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Wendell Seely, Foyer, and George Linwood. dJust before the first twins were born
father felt he must make one more trip into tue mountains to the saw mill to close
things up for the winter, before the storms made it impossible to make the trip. So
he left hopinz to return before motiner took sick, But the very first .ay he was gzone
she knew her time hsd come, lirs. S, J, Shipp had moved to Castle Dale in 1888,

(She was later Post ifistress,) She was the practical nurse and midwife on this oc-
casion, Grandma Szely carried the word to the t- o grandfathers and sent them in a
hurry to bless and name the boys as they feared the one wouldn't live. (ilenning)
When they looked at them they each picked up a baby, The licht complexioned baby,
by Orange Seely who had blue eyes and light hair, The Jdark haired baby was in the
arms of the brown eyed dark haired Jennin; Ulsen. Each bestowed his own name on the
baby he held, #nd incidentally they zrew up resemblinz the one who christened them,

So father had a biz surprise on his return, It was all over and he had two
sons instead of just a new baby,

“hen I, Chasty, was six weeks old, father was moving nother to the saw mill
where he had been called (by the church) to set out lumber and shinzles to build up
Emery Co, This was in late Hay, They becane lodied in the snow with supplies and
equipment, IMotier mounted a saddle horse and rode the rest of the way to the wmoun-
tain cabin carrying lier tiny baby in ner apron whicn made ¢ comfortable hammock for
the little one,

While I was 5till a baby Grandpa Seely came to tihe saw mill on horseback, Mother
rode back to Castle Dale, twerty seven miles, on her horse and carried me 21l the way,

Seven years of this mission was shared by rmother who moved to the mountains
north of Jose Valley in 3lack Canyon where timber wvas plentiful every spring, then
back to town to spend the winter, Two or three other men brought their wives and
children while they worked at the mill, They lived in log cabins close by, If eigs
were brouzht from tle valley, they were packed between layers of cats to keep them
from breaking, Butter was kept cool by packing in a box of alfalfa picked inthe
morning, while wet witihx dew,

ify very earliest memories are of our life there: the big, hizh swing, under a
pine tree; seeing the twins ,oing round and round in the "jumping jack" father had
nade of a bircn hough set in an iron thimble in the floor; the birch with two oppos-
ite limbs on which the boys dan’led in a sort of harness or jacket mother had made of
stronz stripgs of blue denim,

Motner raised a little motherless fawn deer we called "Jenny" until it was ;rown
but when taken to town no correll could hold it so it had to be killed, much to our
SOrrow,

‘lother told of little Henning coaxing for fresh meat after moving to town, "Kill
the cow, mama, kill the cow," !iother would explain if we Jdid thav we would have no
milk, "Then kill the calf,” "hen he was talked out of that he said, "Well than kill
a chicken,g"

One terrifying experience at the mill wes when dennini was lost, ILveryone searche
ed te place in vain, Finally, the water in the mill race w:s turned into another
charnel while the men searcuaed for him all through the mill machinery, At last one of
the men found him at anothie saw mill a long way up the stream, e had followed a piz.

Ifnother incident I snall never forget was the day several of us cuildren were
playiny amony the blz logs that had been dragged in from the forest (some by ox teams)
ready to sa into lunber., lother's brother, Orange II and wife Trena were there as
helpers, They nad two or turee little zirls, ilabel and Pearl, I rememoer, Of -1l
things to happen, one of those biz logs rolled on poor little Pearl, ¥e ran scream-
ing to our mothers for help, There wasn't a man in sight or hearinz but motaer and
Aunt Trena, by super human power beyond their own strenztn, lifted the log enougzh i
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to zet the child out. /s far as I ran remember no serious harm czme of it, but ; 8
neard it referred to many times s @ niracls, ''hen you realize taat the lozs were
zreen and freshly cut and were moved only 0¥ tess or oxen you can See that the 1ift=

ing ol this wei it [rom the haby was inceed done onmly with divine help.

‘iother was a wonder.ul homemaker and cook, Her home wzs a place where family
and friends loved to gatner because she was so cheerful and evsryone was nade velcome,
Tt wa=s a mervel to us all, the spead wit': which her hands eould work, slicing potatoes,
tatting, knitting, picking fruit, quilting or whetever claised ser attention.

Once when sie had a young babdy (Wendell) she laid hin on a pillow in the shade
and picked 105 quarts of gooseberries in one .ay, lire 'imber the ovmer of the atch
remarked, "thet he would trade wives with Had Ols:cn any tims "

iier first cook sbove was a four wold flat bop with no warming closet on top. It
aurned wood Or small pieces of coal, In the front was a small Lhearti: over which a
1ittle door opened expoging the fire~box or grate. Opening or closing this door re-
sulated the daraft, The oven opened on eitner side,

Toast was made either on top of the stove or in the oven, more often she hkeld a
slice of bread on a fork in front of tie hlaze on the hezrtir of the stove or even the
fire place.

By the way, the cutlery were steel (rot steinless) knives and three tines forks.
These had to be scoure.l everyday with sand or wood asies.

Each spring tne year's supply of home-1ade soap was made from the fat, rinds, and
trimmings saved during the winter., For toilet scap Pure Castile was used.

If she every bouzht a 1oaf of bread it wes =l{ter 1900, The stores did not stock
bealers' bread and only conmercisl cakes or coolides were half inch thick squares call-
ed "Sueet Crackers", I wish ve could by bthen Nnow.

iiother made her own sour kraut by fermenting shredded cabbate in a jar by the
fireplace, She made her own vinezar, by saving all bthe rinsing from honey, molasses,
and preserve containers. This wes poured into = suitable wooden keg and kept back of
the stove where it fermentcd nd beccue choice vinegar, providing a small piece of
"mother" was addeds

In season, corn, squasi, and besns were dried alsoc apples, prunes, and apricots.

uch of the preserves were made with honey. In the early years she had but few
glass jars for canning fruit but as time went on she filled her shelves in the cellar,

The big flour-bin was wwwwmﬁﬂwdﬁwwo¢wmmormcdnﬁ m¢5uw<mmﬁ¢w5o.00ﬁsammH
tpush" and rich milk was & fevority supper oisi. Linobaer dish was made by hipping
egg, then poured over {lour, then mixing and rubbing with honds into rice sized
pellets, These were slowly sifeed by the hand into poilin; milk and slouly cooked
£i1l done, This dish was called by somne, tyhickened millz, ™ otuers called it "lumpy

dick."

3pead was truly the "Staffl of Iife", 4s the fanily Irew, to keep the big bread
jar from zetting empty was 2 never ending problem, 3ig pans of sowa biscuts, corn
bread, (Jonny Cake) and even fluffies nade witi pieces of bread douzh fried in fat,
supplinenteds

Yeast as made the day before mixinz., A4ll potato water was saved for tiis pur-
pose to which mashed potato was added alonz with honey or 3u.als Jried yeast cakes
could be boucsht in packazes of six cakes, One of these soaked in luke warm water
anbil soft then added vo potato mixturc would be lisht and foary Ly morning and
recdy for bread mixinge



She made flour starch on wash day by mixinz flour and water togetlier until smooth,
then added boilinz water and cooked till clear, This was added to mater into vhich
the aprons etc, were immersed and then hunz up to dry,

At niziht the coal oil lamps were lit and a lantern was kept handy for use for
outside chores, The glass chirmeys were washed in the morniny with breakfast dishes,
The oil wicks were kept trimmed so the blaze would be even and not smoke., Cozl oil
was always on the want list when going to town, ZEveryone owned a 7allon coal oil can
with a spout for pouriry into the bowl of the lamp, The ton of the can had a twist
on lid and a potato made a zood stopper for the spout,

Hother didn't have electric lizkt in her lhome until 1905, when the plant wa
built to supplr Castle Dale and Oranzeville.
& § o

Siie never knew the joy of haviny water piped into the zouse for bath room and
sink, Tley did nave a fine cistern which was consi.2red quite modern,

£11 washiny was done witih tub and washboard, Fatuer bought a washer to he turned
by tand ~fter e returned from his mission, but mother didn't like it. It didn't do
the kind of work she liked,

e have all been delizhted with pieces of her vesutiful handwork, I used to tell
her she would injure her eye sight, workiny so steadily ab crocuetting, etc, She re-
plied, "I won't zave much to leave to my children except 2 few things I have made with
my hands,"

LAfter father's 9 years of service was up at the saw rnlll, they moved back to
Castle Dale for good., One mornin; mother annourced to father that she Lad a strong
feeling that he was 30inz to be called on a mission and sure enousii, tiwree weeks later
the call came. Father left December 31, 189L (his birthday) for Samoa where ne labore

ed taree and a hzlf vears as a missionary,

Times were hard and money was difficult to get, so you see it took real courage
and faith to outfit him ard put him in the mission field, Besides that, liother was
being left with herself and four caildren to care and provide for. Sle worked un-
ceasin;ly and cheerfully to supply our needs as well as father's, I was old enough:,
to remember her activities., She was janitor for the two schools and I felt it was a
biz task to help sweep them night alter ni-:ht,

She made quilts, did dressmaking and helped people clean house. Anythinz that
came her way that was honorable she did to perform her part of tiat mission., She often
said it was the nappiest time of ner life, Father uas kept blissfully iznorant of all
such thinzs as a broken arm (l{enning), measles, sore throat, colds etc,, taxes and
lack of money. Letters were four weeks on the way and only one mail boat per month,
Hother thousnt, '"no use to worry father with such details tuat he could do nothing
about,”

When the children were sick, liother resorted to nome cures, she was a splendid
nurse and helped others besides her own family,

£ cold on tie lungs called for a plaster. A piece of woolen cloth was coated
with Jard then sprinkled ‘enerously with nutmeg and zinger. Onion couzh syrup was made
by slicing the onion in & bowl and sprinkling with suzar, then covered and placed on
the hback of the stove, This drew out the juice to be ziven to tie patient,

For fever, a Dbath, then put to bed with mustard plast:rs on the feet and plenty
of hot zinger tea to mzke you sweat, I hated the mustard plasters most of &11,

For croup, a towel was dipped in cold water and wrapped around the throst and it
really brouzht relief.
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Lonz before father went on nis mission, we had a fine heifer calf which broke
ler lez, Fathier was for !illing her but louher coaxed him to let her try to set the
bone. She supplied herself with wood cleats ard lonz strips of blue denim, Father
stood by to help, To make a long story short, the bone healed perfectly and she be=
came tihe nain stay of the family during father's -dission, Vhen mobther churned butter
for the first time after this cov had her calf, we children stood around the kitchen
table to watch her mix and mould t.e butter. I remenber so well what she geid, "iow
we wanb Lo round this pound as full as possible, because tiis first pound, we will Zive
to the Lord to show him aow srateful we cre." There was just a small pat left for us
till tlue next churning. COrange and Henning were sent with the pound of butter to the
Bishope

‘hen the dezcons cane for Fast Offerings she a2lways put some flour in the sack
they carried and often sent me to the cellar to fill a bucket with potatoes, "Temember
onlv the bizgest and best for the Lord,"

TThile working over tub and washboard surrounded by loads of soiled clothes to be
scrubbed clsan, she took time then, to talk to us children, In answer to my cuestions,
liother tausht e to honor and revere the garments of the Holy Priesthood, that it was
a great privilege to have the opportunity to mear them,

One sum:er the twins, Oranze and Hemning, were 1ift with Crandma and Grandpa Olser
gazel and I at CGrandua Seely's vhile ilobher went to Ift, Pleasant to gebt her artificial
teetl, She rode horseback both ways, at least 140 miles, I recall, too, how thought—~
ful and kind Crandpa Olsen was, during the years fatiier was on his niission, calling
riost everyday to see how we were, In winber wien the snow was deep he came in the
early morning to build our firss and kelp with the chores,

Every drop of water we used was dipped into barrells to settle, Then it was
carried by bucket across the street for our use, Bach morninz, while cool, the daily
drinking water was sebt in the cellar, Those who could stored ice, packed in sawcsst,
vhich was a real luxuary, In winter the 1ittle stream was frozen, so our only re-
course was to load the LO zallon barrell on a homenade horse-drawn sled with nail
cleats to keep the barrell Ifrom slinppingz off, A clean cloth was spread over tae
barrell, ten a tub fit doim over that Lo kzep the water from sloppini ovexr, It was
my duty to go -rith llother to the river, some three or four blocks avay bo nelp steady
the lozd, Cuite often the whole thing tipped off as we cane up the bank to the road,
then we had to start over, Then this happened we >ame Lome web and cold, Whenever
possible, tiother melted snow and ice, even icycles, on the stove in = pig tub and em=
ptied it into the b-rrell and wash boiler for washinje, She alvays thrilled at the soft
ness of this “ater which could be used without lye, and made such wonderful suds, ‘e
possible she saved rain water for washing nice thinzs.

Or course we alweys batied in the wash tub in front of tihe fireplace or in th
Kitchen where it was warm, Bath water was heated on stoves in the wesh boiler.

In order to have our oun meat, pigs were raised, The garlens were Kept clean of
weeds to feed them, along with alfalfa and bran and shorts which was wet vith elther
milk or water, Chepped hands werz helped by socaking them in this mixture which was
prepared ahead of time and kept in a barrell. Henning always had more use for this
treatment than the rest, His poor little hands alwavs had cracks in them, tlother ofte
rubbed ccgl-oil on them to loosen the dirt then scrubbed them clean while he cried and
jumped up and down, Then 2 zood ccat or mutton tallow was rubbed on and a pair of
mittens or stocldnss pulled on to e T throuszia the night, alweys with fine results,

it piz killing time in the late .all, everything else stood still for a week to
care for the meat., The hams, shoulders, anc s1de 1eat vere placed in a barrell and

coverad with a susar and salt-petie brine end left till curede Then it was dried and
smoked in a home-iads smoke house,
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The sausaze was all ground at home in a hand turned sausage zrirder, stuffed

into home prepared casinz and I tell you there is no sausaie like that, The lard was
rendered and stored for future usc. ead cheese was pub in 2 press. The fest vwnﬁwma.
Ribs, liver and .eart wer: soon used, as everyone was fresh meat lungry.

During father's absencs, Mother wes a councelor in the Y,L.i.I.A. In or.er that
ghe nisht be at home with her small children, she arranged to have tie weekly meetings
held in lier own (1OME, of course, that was lonz before younz ladies and young men neld
their meetings jointlye

Christmas 1ias a joyous occasion, but one or Lo +ifts were the 1imit, The one I

can't forzet was during father's mission, 'fe had a tree but liother conldn't wake bhe

stand so she tied a cord o the top of the tree and pulled the cord throuzi the hang=-
ing lamp hook in the ceiling. Of course the stunp hmng down and we couldn't reach it
but the zifts were wonderful and represented long hours of work end sacrifice for
Mother, 1 zot a black cape trimied with fur and a red felt hat, The brim turnsd back
with three feather tips curled forward, Could anythiny ever be SO fine, My joy knew
no bounds, Lranie and .enning each spied ¢ pair of black 1esther boots trimied with
red leather hanging so high up on the tree that lothier stood on a cualr and handed us
our precious pelonginis, Hazel was in extacies over ner Jdolly, which had a china head ,
hands and feet, liother sent a large fruit cake to Fether by Flders who were Joing to
Samoa, I remember her saying the ingredients for that cake cost her .00, OFf course,
she had o thick icing on it to keep it moist, How she ever got it to Salt Lale, L don't
Know. In later years she also sert a cake to Orange in Germanys

When Father was ready to conme LOME, fother sent him 25,00 with which to ouy
souviners, She nad viorized hard for this lon3 awaited btime and nade careful planses The
home vas furnished with new rag carpets,straw under taem, new curtains, new cnenille
cover on the parlor table and ob.ier little touches that made the “hole place like =& place
of wealth to me, ilother had washed the carded wool into batts bo make a new mabtress,
the Tirst we ever lLadle It was quite a nev thing or idea. A£Alvays betore we ncd sleph
on straw ticks or bed ricks filled with corn hsks which .iotier 1liked rmuch better be=
cause it didn't nzke such 2 Just when she stirred it up, Ve had rever had bed sprinzs,
but wooden slats on which the straw rilled ticks were placed,

You may know it tool & lot of work over a lonz period of time +o card batts enough
for a 30 or LO pound nattress, It nade a lovely soft bed when finally completed, Of
conrse, she had the ool from Ler own sheep bein3 cared for on a shere basis by her

old lit, I"Leasant s= ool teacher, Josegh Page, who now hed his home in Oranzeville, The
20 head ziven on lLer wedding had now ingreased to a nortimiiile sheep herd,

She was pioud =nd happy to have the big flour yin full of flour and the cellar
well mcwmwwmg.zwds the necessities of life, She also had 25,00 to start Father out
with a bit of cash in anis pocket,

T was eleven and remeaber SO vividly our goinz to Price to ~oet the train, Mother,
Uncle Alonzo, motier's bLrouier, ard we four childrer in 2 1i 4t spring wazon, trzveled
30 miles which was 2 Jay's jourmej at that time, It was June and the moon shone brizht-
1y as we made camp on the Price Hiver. Fivesyear: oid vazel was frigatensd for fear we
mizht be mistalen for tae notorious Zang of outlaws known &5 the " iobbers Rooste" (Only
she said, "liobbers roosters’,)

Father had sent sever:zl picourss 10ie of winself wearinz 2 lonjg nlack beard. I
was sick with fear taat llother vouldn't knou him 2nd zelb the Wrong Malh, 't Ty worry
wes Jispelled tie next day at 1 pee I lnew him as soon as e stepped off The traii.
On, what 2 joyful reunion after turee and a half lon: years absence. Father brougid
hoe with him a native Doy, Jomes vackie mnd Geor:e fenpison, a Joung “an tuentvy=-three
years olds lother took ther botl to her heart 2nd home an. Was truly a good lotoer to
both of them, as lon3 as they were with us. Little Jim was near tie same az¢ as Orange

and lenninz, being just turee months older, (As father was a Scotclman but Lis motnier
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was a native princess, The tribe wanted to take Jim to train him to be King, His fathe
wished to come to Zion so he sent Jim on ahead, He was a wonderful child and we all
loved him, After several years his parents did come and he went to live with them,
Georze Kennison died after a feu years,

The following February 5, 1899, Mother zave birth to pre-mature twins weighiny two
pounds each, Theyk like the older twins were not identical, one dark, one lisht, Dr,
“illiam P, Winters «nd irs, S, J. Shipp were in attendance, She came once a day and
cared for Mother end tine babies. The rest of the time, I (almost 12 years) took over
under Mother's watciful eyes,

i
o
]

The babies were not dressed; but wrapped in cotton; not bathed in water, but
rubbed rently with varm oil, Warm pieces of 1ool blenkets were tucked about them, They
were kept and handled on pillows, which helped to corcerve what little strength they
had, Frvit jars of hot mater supplied warmth, The milk from Mother's breast was fed
every little while with & medicine Jroppsr. There were many preyers said in thsat
hougshold feor th: two welcome little ones who were blessed end ziven nemes immediately
after birtihi. Tae boy Simon Seleng, the girl Jenny Linl. The latter died when 11 days
old. Thaen laid out she measured 1l inches, 1 inch for each Zay she had Llived, Her
hair and eyes were dark, The clsthes for her burial were made by Aunt !finnie Ungerman
and looked like doll clothes,

No one will ever know what llobher went throuzh raising Jelon, He was ler constant
care for months, He wei lied only U pounds when L months old, *Ther his suffering was
so grea® that the seams across his head stood up as big as =z lead pencil, I've seen
Mother kreel down with him in her arms, always on that pillow, o1 kneel heside his bed
and plead with the Lord to take Lim out of his misery. She just couldn't stand to
watch thav strugsle for life, s the years went by, he overcame being so delicate and
grew up to do a man's rull part and was alwars a jreat comfort and help to his parents,

Or October 18, 1900, Crystal was born in Castle Dale., She was a beautiful baby
with .ark eyes and hair. She and Delon were constant companions, so ilother really had
twins after all,

The fall of 1901, the fanily movod to Sunnyside, Carbon County, Utsh, This was a
prosperous mining tovn where Father hac built a new hotel called the "Green Front,"
which was imnediately filled with boarder:, Aunt Bertrulde went to help t{other, along
with others, Uncle Lon also spent most of the Tinter in Sunnyside, so I, Chasty, was
left in Castle Dale for Lhe school year to attend the Emery Stake fcademy, living with
Grandpa and Grandma Seely,

At the hotel they had good help and +rith ilotherts able mana ‘ement, a1l went well,

On a hot dry Jay the followinz summer, the lint in the ventilator over the big
cook stove cauzint fire, Fverrone ran out calling, "Firel' liotiher was in her room,
she had a badly sprained enkle =t the time, so she came to the kitchen as fast as she
could with her kiee bent in a chair for a ciutch, and c>lled me to belp ter, She
dipped the big broom (called "Ole Setu" by father) in water then brushed the burrizg
lint down on the top of the stove while I drew vater in & bucket which she dashed into
the flames (there was no fire Jepartmert,) After a time others ventured in to help and
all was made safe, Sut for her cocl headed couraze, that whole frome building and a
kitchen covered with oil cloth would have burned like o crackertox, She was always
thus, under great strain snd trouble, Years later in Castle Jale, the 1wt stove rive
set fire to the kitch roof, lother flew up stairs, pulleu the wincow out of the mwwsmu.i
called Oranze from a late Suniay morninz sleep as sae workedl, On the roof sas palled
shinzles loose and got a passinz man to hand her buckets of water ~hile Orange tried
fron every angle to zet his trousers on, ;

Only about taree rmonvis after the Sunnyside incident, October m“ 1902, ""anda was

born. She too, had dark ey=s 2nd hair and was 1other's baby girl,
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She had three more sons born to her, making 6 sons and 5 dauzhter, Eleven in all,
who honor her as a ricgt wonderful mother, endoved with all the qualities and abilities
that made for a happy successful Latter-Day Saint home, She taught us to pray to a kind
lovinz Father in Heaven who would be grieved at any wrong doing; not a God who stood
ready to punish, Jvery child was taught to be trutnful, honest, and to guard our Vire
tue with our life,

Father and lother decided that a hotel was no place to raise 2 growing family so
they sold the place to Joseph Christensen and moved back to Castle Jezle in December
1902, e were zlad to be back in our dear old home czain,

These years and many to follow were hard years lor liother, There were trials and
hardsaips incident to raising a family, Besides ner own, theie was always sorie poor
sou’. 4ho needed a lift or a temporary nome, Once an old one-armed man stayed for the
sum.ev, i biny baby whose liother had died came in for her loving care. /t tuwo differ-
en’ “imes ¢irls with St, Vitas Dance, with over-wrouzht nerves, learned ner caln
strer ih and returned home much improved, Then my father's maiden Auntie, Johanne
Unzerion, was brousht into the home to spend the rest of her days as a loved member of
that “iusebhold of vigeréus, noisy, growing boys. ilother gave up her ‘downstairs bed-
foom vor Auatie's comfort till she passed on, liarch 17, 1918,

~n 1309, my brotier Orange was called to the Swiss-Austrian Mission. He was 19
years old the day he left Salt Lake City, He was gone two and a helf years,

Father and the bosy still farmed the parsdise Ranch in the summer and moved to
town in the winter,

To raise the money each month for Orange, besides the needs of the family, meant
extreme sacrifice for every member of tie family.

It u:s et this time our dear old horme on ilain Street, where all Mother's children
had been born, was sold, liother's younzest brotuer, David and his wife Elva became
its owners,

Fabner owned eleven acres on tine nortihh bench where a nevhome was built bub in the
interum, what used to be the Tithing Office was rented for a winter nome, It had a full
basemcnt and two biz rooms on tie ground floor, Although they were crowded, they
managed till the new house was built, waich they moved into vefore it was completely
finished. .iother's voungest child, Georgei., was born in the rented place.

Altaough ilotier's life wras filled with much toil, sacrifice, and disappointment,
she coulu always smile and exhibit her natural cheerfulness, She played with ner
children hile 20in~ about her work, carrying on play conversation, She often played
horse with uer little boys, She would be tne horse with a wooden stick in Ler mouth
for = bit, with string reigns attached, Then she would cut all kinds of caper, much
to the delisht of a 1little boy,

Her oldest grandson, Grant, was left with her for an evening on one of our visits.
He cried for his wmother, and undertook to follow her down the roal, ("o fear of cars
then.) Mother cut across tne lot and hiid in the corner rear tue cemetary, where she
bellowed like 2 bull as he drew near, He turned and ran for home but she was sitting
calmly in a chair as he ran into her velcome arus, C(rant wouldn't believe till ae was
a groun man, but vhat a real bull had been after him. Mer favorite iymn was, "Guid Us,
Oh Thou Great Jehovah," She sanz it often, It seemed to have a special meaning foir he.

Their next venture was in lower Jose Valley, 20 miles west of Castle Jale, Here
they homesteaded a piece of ilountainous land=1%0 acres, This homestead was just a few
i1iles souxh of the saw mill wiere this couple lived for the first years of their
married life, This place they named Crystal Park, for the big spring of clear water
just back of the first loz cabin they built, Ilother loved to spend her summers at this
lovely spot where the pines and vild flowers and grass irew so abundantly, There were
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no close neighbors so 'endell, Foyer, and (eorge were her constant companions, Hother
had a most becutiful flower garden in front of the cabin, Sweet Williams, California
poppies, Caraway and Hollyhiocks were a delizht to see on each side of the walk, In
this quiet place I think she knew some days of leisure for the first time in her life.

She made lovely pieces of handwork, She excelled in this field, By the vay, when
I was small I went many times with lMother to spend a day at Grandma seeley's vihere she
used the biz spinning wheel to spin yarn from the wool she nad washed, carded, and made
into rolls and arranged in neat piles, Irom this yarn she knitted stockings for here
self and ciilaren for winter wear, Most all children went barefoot during the summer,
tlother ma.e moccisons of blue denim, nostly the best parts from worn out overalls, For
the soles, she sewed many thicknesses of denim together, quilted back and forth on the
machire, e lovcd tiiem on our tender feet in the spring,

Her hands were never icdle., She crocieted any pattern she saw and I wish you could
have seen her tat. I have watched many others, but n=ver anyone with ner speed, her
shuttle flew so fast you covldn't see wkat ha pened, She maue all her children's
clotnes and did uressnaking for many others, She sewed all the underware for herself,
husband and younisters made of unbleached ‘wmslin, outing or canton flannel, Stores
did not stock underware for children, ir our town, until about 1900. There were no
knitted L.D.S. garments until about that time either,

She served as chairman of the Burial Committed in Castle Jzle for many years,
laying out the dead, preparing the body for burial, and helping to sew the clothing
with sympathy and loving care,

Uncle Clair Winter always asked Motner to cook fried potatoes whenever they visite
ed us. I learned later it wasn't the fried potatoes he enjoyed so much, as watching
her slice them into the frying pan. I have never at anytime seen a person who could
slice potatoes as fast and even as she could. Her knife was always real sharp and to
give it an extra edze sie either honed it on the stove pipe or on a rock kept close by,
outside the door. Then it became almost a blur as she put it into action,

In the summer of 1920, my family and I visited iiother and Father =znd the boys at
the beautiful sumner home in Jjose Valley for two glorious weeks, There was more joy
and precious memories crowded into that short visit taan many months often hold. e
have never made a trip that meant so much to my children, who nad known very little of
their grandma, only throuszh letters, But this trip made them feel they really knew
her in a vay they would never forget,

This was the last time any of us ever saw Mother., [t seems unbelievable now in
these deys of cars and easy travel, liother died very suddenly of a heart attack, liarch
6, 1925, about 8 p,m, at her home in Castle Dale. She had spent a very ousy day,
baked 2 big batch of bread, churned several pounds of butter. She had prepared and
served a lovely dinner to all the lamily including Father, Delon, ‘'endell, Foyer, George.
Wandz, Reuel and 'irmer Hill, Hazel's hushand who was there on a sihort visit from Ste
Anthony, Idaho,

Lfter "anda went home tae boys all went to a ball Zame, Wimmer went to Huntington
and Fatlier went ward tesching, While he was ‘:one she took a bath and shampooed her
hair, Heuel went back down and she was sitting in the rocker in her batihrobe, !He
left to help Wanda put the children to bed, ¥hen Father sot hom she said she didn't
feel good so he took ter by the arm and said she must go to bhed, She was sick at her
stomach and he gave ner water to rinse ner mouth, She lay back on the pillow, Father
set at the foot of the bed, he thought she wart to sleep very cuickly as she made a
sound as if she snorsd, The lizht from the other room shone on her face and soon he
noticed she didn't look natural, e called her and shook ier hut she was rone, '"She
hgd been charzed in the twinkling of an eye,"



We will always remember the shock and grief of that sad iay, She was too young
to die, just 59 years old. I had looked forward to the time vhen the boys would be
raised and she could visit us often,

I'm sure Bhe is busy and doing useful and needful things in her Heavenly Hame,

Her funeral was attended by all her children, her mother, brothers and sister,
relatives and friends from far and hear,

The Castle Dale Ware ielief Society served a hot chicken dinner in their banquet
hall to the large family and a host of out of town Ilriends,. e

She w s buried in Castle Dale Cemetary iMarch 10, 1925,

"Now she belongs to the azes," but she will always live in the hearts a dories
of her children,



TALK GIVEN BY JOHN LEO SEELY
AT THE SEELY REUNION ON

August 8, 1970

Dear Relatives, I am happy to see everyone of you here today.

These are wonderful occasions, and each of us should make every effort
to be to these reunions, to take advantage of becoming better acquainted,
and to help one another pursue the records of this great family.

They've asked me to relate a little history of the Seely family,
and in so doing, I am mindful that we have in our presence geneology
workers who know much more about the Seely record than I do, but I am
thankful for the opportunity to relate what has been handed down to me.

The Seelys have a record back to a man by the name of Robert Seely,
who lived in the 1600's and I would be the tenth generation from him.

In talking to Morris Seely yesterday, he tells me they have the
geneology of Robert Seely's father, so now I am of the eleventh
generation, and I will name them to you.

My name is John Leo Seely, and my father's name was John Henry Seely,
and his father was Justus Wellington Seely, (that's my grandfather) and
his father was Justus Azel Seely, (that's my great grandfather) and his
father was Justus, and Justus' father was Joseph, and Joseph's father
was John. John's father was Benjamin, and Benjamin's father was
Nathaniel, and Nathaniel's father was Robert, and now we are back to
William, Robert's father.

I am not going to start back there, but with the Seelys with whom
I am more familiar, my great grandfather, Justus Azel Seely. He was

born November 17, 1779, in New Milford, Connecticut, and he was married
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in the year 1800 to a lady by the name of Mehitable Bennett at
Luzerne, Pennsylvania. Mehitable Bennett was born October 12, 1780.
They were blessed with ten children. The first two were twin girls
born in 1801, and they were named Rachel and Mehitable. Mehitable, named
after her mother, died at birth. 1In 1803, another daughter was born,
and she was named Rebecaa. The next child was a son, John, born in 1805,
and he died in 1826. The aforementioned children were born in Luzerne,
Pennsylvania. The next two daughters were born in Steubenville, New York;
Elizabeth in 1807 and Mary in 1810. Then my great grandfather, Justus
Azel Seely, moved to Canada, in the vicinity of Toronto. In 1815, my
grandfather, Justus Wellington Seely was born. Sarah Ann came to them
in 1817, and their last child, David, was born in 1819. Now you know
where all those children were born.

Living in Canada at that time was a brilliant man by the name of
John Taylor. He had come over from England. He lived in Toronto, Canada
where he was a Methodist Minister. He had a parish of his own, and
Justus Azel Seely and his family were members of his parish. Now, I am
going to connect the Justus Azel Seely family with the restoration of
the Gospel of Jesus Christ in this dispensation. I want you all to know
the happenings connected here. Justus Azel's last son was born in 1819,
which is very near to the restoration. You all know, you Latter Day
Saints, that the beginning of the restoration of the Gospel of Jesus
Christ came in 1820 when God, The Eternal Father and His Son, Jesus
Christ, visited a mortal man here upon the earth. You all know the
purpose of that visit, to answer the question "which of all the churches
was true." And God, The Eternal Father said in that visit, and I quote, . _
“This is my beloved Son, hear Him," and his beloved Son, Jesus Christ,

our Redeemer, said "Join none of them, they are all wrong. Their creeds
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are an abdomination in my sight. Their professors are all corrupt.
They draw near me with their lips but their hearts are far from me.
They teach for doctrine the commandments of men, having a form of God-
liness, but they deny the power thereof." (Pearl of Great Price) Unquote.
So that being true, you can see the great need for the Gospel being
restored.
In 1827, the Angel Moroni appeared unto mortal man and gave unto
him from mother earth what we have contained in the Book of Mormon.
In 1830, The Church of Jesus Christ was organized anew, but there was
not a perfect organization until 1835, when the Twelve Apostles were
chosen. The Twelve Apostles were selected from those men in Zion's Camp,
who marched from Kirtland, Ohio, afoot to Independence, Missouri. The
purpose of this march was to try and redeem property which they had lost
or had stolen from them. The Prophet Joseph Smith appointed the three
witnesses, Oliver Cowdery, David Witmer, and Martin Harris to select the
Twelve Apostles from those men who had made the march in Zion's Camp.
Parley P. Pratt was one of those called to be an Apostle in 1835,
and in 1836 he went into Canada proclaiming this restored Gospel. He
met John Taylor, and he converted him. Then Parley P. Pratt and
John Taylor converted most of John Taylor's Parish. And the Seeleys, our
progenitors, were among them. It was customary in those days to gather
with the body of Saints because of the great persecution the members
were receiving. The body of the Saints was in Farr West, Missouri, and
Justus Azel Seely and his family, with the exception of two sons, left
to be with them. They went by boat down the river, and when they
arrived in Missouri, they found the Saints had all been driven out of
Missouri. When the Saints were driven out of Missouri, they went to

Illinois, and it was then they started building the City of Nauvoo.
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Justus Wellington, our grandfather, owned a span of black
Percheron mares he valued very highly, so instead of going with the
family, he drove his mares from Toronto to Missouri, and his youngest
brother, David, went with him for company. David also drove a team of
horses. When they arrived in Missouri, they weren't able to find their
family, and it was some time before they were united.

The Seelys went through the Nauvoo Exodus, and there are many
stories that could be related. There is one story you should know. My
great grandfather, Justus Azel, was very crippled with arthritis and
could not walk. Exercising great faith, they carried him into the
Nauvoo Temple on a blanket and baptised him seven times for his health,
and he walked out on his own power.

When the Saints were driven out of Nauvoo, the Temple wasn't yet
dedicated, but the Authorities of the church appointed two months,
January and February of 1846 for the members to go and receive their
endowments, and have their sealings done. Justus Azel Seely with his
three sons and their wives were all on the same session, February 3, 1846,
and they all received their endowments. Records show that a daughter,
Sarah Ann, received her endowments on this date, too. There was mob
violence during this session, and it broke up the session, and they
weren't able to complete their sealings. And, it was many years before
these sealings were all completed. Justus Wellington Seely and his wife
didn't get sealed to each other until 1869, and then they had a hard time
getting all those children sealed to them. My father, for instance, was
married to mother in the Endowment House in Salt Lake City in 1880, and
father didn't get sealed to his parents until 1912. Don Carlos didn't
get sealed to his parents until 1927, and Stuart Randolph didn't get

sealed to his parents until after his death in about 1936.
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John Taylor had now become an Apostle, and because of the great
persecutions and mob violence, the body of the church headed west.

John Taylor was captain of one of these companies, and the Seelys came
in his company, arriving in Salt Lake Valley in September,1847.

Justus Azel Seely and family, consisting of Justus Wellington Seely,
William S. Seely, David Seely and Elizabeth Seely Young and their
families came with the John Taylor Company.

For a few minutes I would like to talk about Justus Wellington
Seely, our grandfather, in whose name this organization honors. He was
born in 1815, and was married in 1842 to Clarissa Jane Wilcox. I would
like to relate a faith promoting experience about Clarissa Jane before
she married Justus Wellington Seely. She was a maid in a hotel or a
lodging house. She was making a bed in one of the rooms, and as she
pulled the pillow off the bed, a pistol that had been placed there by the
hotel guest, discharged and she was shot through the trunk of her body.
A physician was called immediately, and he said he was very doubtful that
she would live, and if she did, she would never be able to bear children.
She was administered to by the Elders and the Elder that pronounced the
blessing promised her she would live and that she would be blessed with
children. Now we'll see if this came to pass. She and Justus were
married in 1842, and they had their first son in 1843. He was given the
name of Orange Seely, and in 1844 Sarah was born, and in 1846 Don Carlos
was born. As I said, they came to Utah in 1847, and early in 1848
another son, Hyrum was born. In 1850, Justus Wellington II was born.

In 1851, they, with others, received the call from Brigham Young to take
their families and go down and settle San Bernardino, California. With
their five children, they hooked up the oxen again and made the wagon

box their home for the long journey to California. William Hazard was
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born in San Bernardino in 1852, and then in 1855 John Henry, my father,
was born. In 1857 another daughter, Miranda, was born. This was at the
time the Johnson Army was moving in. Brigham Young heard they were
coming, and he took a stand to not be driven any more. And he called all
the Saints home, not only those in Califormnia, but from wherever they
were.

The Seelys had prospered down there and had good homes, but they
left everything and started back to Utah December 24, 1857. They arrived
in Pleasant Grove, Utah the first of April, 1858. That was a long hard
trip back. They spent the summer and winter in Pleasant Grove, but they
hadn't had quite enough travelling around, as Brigham Young called them
to go settle Mt. Pleasant. The men came to Mt. Pleasant in early March
to get the brush scrubbed and plowing done and some crops planted.

Justus Azel Seely died April 1, 1859. He was buried in Pleasant Grove,
and those members of the family in Mt. Pleasant went up there for the
funeral. Then they brought the women and children to Mt. Pleasant to
live, in May, 1859.

The Fort in Mt. Pleasant was started immediately, and it covered a
whole city block. It was built out of rock. It was four feet at the
bottom, two feet at the top and twelve feet high. Just imagine what a
few men accomplished in so shott a time. They prepared the ground for
planting, put in the crops, and had the Fort finished by July. Then
they built their homes inside the Fort. I've heard my father tell of

playing in the Fort when he was a boy, and of the things that took place.

Now, let's go back to Justus Wellington Seely. The same year they
came to Mt. Pleasant, 1859, they had another son, David. He lived only a
year and died in 1860. He's buried here in Mt. Pleasant. In 1862, Joseph

Seely was born, and then in 1865 another child, Stuart Randolph was born.
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This was the last child born to my grandmother, Clarissa Jane Seely.
Justus Wellington Seely had a daughter from a second marriage. His
second wife was Sarah Jane McKinney, and he married her in 1873. The
daughter from this marriage was named Eva. She was born in 1874. I want
to relate to you that I have a sheet of all Justus Wellington's children.
I have gone through them and numbered how many children each one had,

and I've totalled them up. Clarissa Jane Seely had, and it will astound
you, an even 100 grandchildren, and then Eva had a posterity of eleven.
That makes one hundred for my grandmother and one hundred eleven for my
grandfather. That's really a record. Grandmother Seely had a posterity
of four hundred before she died.

I would like to tell you about David Seely, who went to California
when my grandfather went. His wife objected to coming back to Utah when
Brigham Young called the Saints back. She said she had moved around all
she was going to and she wouldn't come. David came back with the rest
of the company and went to Brigham Young and told him what had happened,
and Brigham Young told him, "We're not splitting up any families, so you
go back to California, and see if you can convince her to come back to
Utah." He had to go back alone, with the hope of pursuading his wife
to come back. They had ten children, and I knew some of them. They were
cousins of my fathers and they used to come and visit us years ago,
quite a few years ago, because my father had been dead 50 years. David
couldn't pursuade his wife to cocme back mbm,wmmm is the result. As far
as we know, that whole family is out of the church. There may be some
descendants that have come into the church. We really don't know. But
this is what happens when you don't heed counsel.

I will now tell you some of the things Justus Wellington did when he

lived here in Mt. Pleasant. His brother, William Stuart was the first
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bishop of Mt. Pleasant. He was older than my grandfather and he was
bishop here for 30 years. Justus Wellington Seely was his counsellor

for 17 years. Justus Wellington was Justice of the Peace for 20 years
and he was very active. In fact, all of these Seelys made a record for
themselves. Justus Wellington owned that whole block where Elva Seely
Guymon and Ray Seely live, and where the Co-op Service Station stands.

He owned that whole block and his home was on the southeast corner where
Elva lives now. The northwest corner he gave to his son, Joseph Seely.
The southwest corner he gave to his oldest son, Orange. Orange built

the home that stood on that corner for years. It was really a well built
home, and it's a shame they ever took it down. Orange Seely had holdings
here. He had his home, he had a herd of sheep, he had cattle, he owned
land, but he was meant to do more colonization. ww was called to go over
and settle Emery County. He picked up and left what he had and started
all over again. He gave his home to Justus Wellington Seely, his father,
and that's where Justus Wellington lived until he died in 1894. Justus
Wellington built a barn on that block, and it still stands there.

Ray Seely owns the property and he's repaired the barn and replaced the
old roof, but it's worth your time ,if you have not seen it,to go down
and see how it is built. He had hewn the blocks out of great big timbers
about a foot and a half square, and they are mortised in, and the
framework is standing there today, as good as the day it was built, and
that is close to a hundred years ago.

When Justus Wellington moved into the home, Orange Seely had built,
he gave that corner where he had lived to Stuart Randolph, the youngest
son. He took the home down and built the home that is there now. He
later moved to Idaho and Joseph Seely, his brother, moved into his home.
The northeast lot was given to Eva Seely, a daughter of Justus Wellington
Seely.
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Time is passing and I could relate different stories for hours.
I'm afraid nine~tenths of the Seely's marvelous history will never be
written. I challenge each one of you to start writing this great history

of a great heritage.
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